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(@) Land Registrar’s Statement
| am pleased fo present the report for the lond Registry Trading Fund for the financial year ending 31 March
2010, which is also the first report since | assumed the post of the land Registrar in August 2009.

2009/10 was a challenging vyear for the land Regisiry. We were sfill in the midst of the global economic
downturn af the start of the financial year. For an enfity whose operation is highly sensitive fo economic cycles,
the situation could hardly be taken as reassuring. In face of the challenge, we maintained our momentum in
inroducing new inifiafives to improve the quality and efficiency of our service, and fo atiract more business. We
released an enhanced version of the e-Memorial Form in July 2009. Since its introduction, the usage rate of the
e-Memorial Form increased by about 50% to account for some 45% of the documents delivered for registration
currently. In October 2009, we reduced the application fee and minimum deposit for subscriber accounts for our
Integrated  Registration  Information System (IRIS) Online Services, leading to an increase of almost 9% in the
number of subscribers to a record high of 818 by end March 2010.

These initiatives, fogether with a general recovery in the property markef, have led to a remarkable performance
for the land Registry Trading Fund. The turnover for 2009/10 increased by 18.9% to $505.8 million, while profit
and total comprehensive income increased by 60.1% to $149.7 million. The Trading Fund recorded a rate of

return on fixed assefs of around 38.5%, a significant increase of 104.8% from the previous year.

| am equally encouraged by the community’s recognition of our commitment to serve and excel. last year, the
Lland Registry was awarded the First Runnerup in the Service Enhancement Award (Small Depariment category) in
the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2009, and won the Public Organisation Award of The
Ombudsman’s Awards 2009. | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to our staff members for their dedication

and professionalism in the delivery of services to the public.

In keeping with our culture of continuous improvements, | am pleased to share with our customers and partners a
number of service enhancements. Besides overshooting all our key performance pledges, earlier this year we
infroduced a new set of performance pledges for a speedier delivery of services. | would like to take this
opportunity fo update our readers that we successfully launched a new search service system in August 2010.
The new system provides more stable and reliable search services with an extension of service hours from 16 to
20 hours each day. We are also developing an update of our popular e-Memorial Form with userfriendly
features such as bulk input and autodfilling up of address by using Property Reference Number. The update would

be available for trial use in the first half of 2011.

2009 — 2010 Annual Report  The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong 3
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Another great challenge for the department is the development of a fitle registration system. Qur vibrant property
market is currently underpinned by one of the oldest pieces of legislation in the ferritory. It is no exaggeration fo
say that the infroduction of a tifle registration system to replace the deed registration system would be a

revolutionary change. The process would inevitably be controversial, with plenty of twists and tums.

Indeed, the debate on how best to implement our fille registration system continues to this day, six years affer the
enactment of the land Titles Ordinance (LTO) in 2004. last year we completed a public consultation exercise on
the proposed modifications to the conversion and rectification mechanisms under the LTO. The exercise was an
infellectually taxing one, not least because of the highly complex subjects involved. | am greatly indebted to our
stakeholders and other members of the public, who had painstakingly considered the issues involved and offered
their invaluable comments. The result of the public consultation has pointed towards the preservation of the
"daylight conversion” mechanism and the provision of limited exceptions to the recfification arrangement for fraud
cases under the LTO. Concems were recently raised on the “mandatory rectification” rule in the LTO. Suggestions
were made on the adoption of “immediate indefeasibility” instead, and that the cap on indemnity and the bar
on indemnity for pre-conversion fraud should be liffed. Divergent views were held by our major stakeholders on
these issues. They touched on the core elements enshrined in the [TO and could have farreaching implications on

our land titles system and ifs implementation timefable.

Notwithstanding the divergence in views held by stakeholders, we believe that there mainfains an aspiration in
the community for the early implementation of the fille registration system. We will strive fo resolve the issues

concemed together with our stakeholders, with a view to identifying the best way forward.

The land fitles exercise, albeit a difficult one, underlines the importance and value we attach to partnership and
collaboration. | would therefore like to end this note by thanking our pariners and customers for all their support,

comments and advice over the past year. We look forward to your continued support in the years fo come.

' Aar Yan,

Olivia NIP, J.P.

The Lland Registrar & General Manager
The land Registry Trading Fund, Hong Kong
27 September 2010
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(b) 2009/10F & & EEIE Highlights of 2009/10

AR RZEFE 1% Public Services and Customer Relations

HEE AR B RSIN(ELR) R
(R R B8 ook ¥ BB R ) (F10hR)
Llaunched for sale the Street Index (41st
edition) and the New Territories Lot/

Address Cross Reference Table (10th

edition] on compact disc

—ETAFEHRANA
ﬁﬂ 4 May 2009
Moy RA2009/10F E RiF & - RFA (ZLIEE)EFBER LB 20005
RIS KF o BREEMEEBAE (F-HEER)
Announced the enhanced Performance 15 B 2047
Pledges 2009/10 The TV series of “Stories of Our land”

was among the top 20 in the 2009
TV Programme Appreciation Index

Survey (Phase 1)

—ETASLEAMA
4 May 2009

A HEEMPL  BREMNEELRAEGFMARERIH
RipEMpLEERE -
Closed the Sha Tin Search Office and relocated the

Owners' Corporation Services fo the Tai Po Search Office

O EEinImALSEES —TEAS-T-TEER
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“EThELA+H
AT 10 July 2009

pa .

k- 14

—BTNELtAtTABETtH
15 - 17 July 2009

FHEPRBASBNEDEERR

Introduced the enhanced Interactive Voice

Response System of the customer service

hotline
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Sep

—EEAENA
September 2009

ElFaaMERRSINEREMNA
H X 758 B

Enriched the Integrated Registration
Information System (IRIS) database with

Chinese street names

“ETAEARA=+IE
29 September 2009

ERIE[2000F A 75 BB E RS Z B 5T
2 r[#B P A E AR 75 22 (/N BB PI AR 3D
T EIE

Received the First Runner-up of the
Service Enhancement Award (Small
Department category) in the Civil
Service Outstanding Service Award

Scheme 2009

BELIAMELERS —TTNE_T-TFFH

Oct

“E¥hFE+A—H

1 October 2009
THIGAEMEMRRG B LERBELAFHK
FHRFEEMRERESHFR

Reduced the application fee and minimum deposit

for IRIS Online Services Subscriber Accounts
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’]‘}ﬂ “EEAETA+TAH
OCT 19 October 2009

IWREME R REE

Received a delegation from

Shandong lawyers Association

“EThFE+A=t+—8 —EEAE+AZ+tHE=TH

21 October 2009 27 - 30 October 2009

MM AR AMEEEES o 4 AR BR R R AR RN R B SR AT R B 30fE M
2008/094F & & ) MERE =

Tabled the Land Registry Trading Fund The Land Registrar aftended the 36th Registrars of Title
Annual Report 2008/09 in the Conference held in Sydney,

Legislative Council Australia

RE00OFHFEE T RN A EHE R
Received the Ombudsman’s Awards 2009 —
Public Organisation Award

2009 — 2010 Annual Report - The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong Q



M T ERE Seventeenth Year in Review

+ X X @ 8
Seventeenth Year in Review

ETEPRBERRSD

Conducted a Customer Service Survey

TRAHEN T HEMEERERE
Opened the land Registry Archive in
Sha Tin

4 3 M AR B AR B
The Lland Registry Open Day

20097
>0

#EBRFS Community Services

2MERB R BRNIASHZIHIE]
Participated in the Green Day organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong

10 sgtwsmaesss —TTAs-—2- S54H
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Ay —®EAS/\ASHEAA=H
3 August - 2 September 2009

AUg RIEDeSRAE I RETEEZIR
Workplace aftachment training for the

Youth Pre-employment Training Programme

/N —®BAFAA—BE+—A=+H
1 September — 30 November 2009

BSUSiE [ TERESS |

}:F

—BThEARA=TH
30 September 2009
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+2=R —SEAE+=ARE
9 December 2009
Dec
2MBEERZSERNIAEETA]
Participated in the love Teeth Day organised Emine S, & SRSNNTR

by The Community Chest of Hong Kong REsHH

Love Teerh Day

e
s, %
%

—R —®-%%—AAH
JO n 9 January 2010

EEOELBREFZBHCRE)M
REXEHT T MERERED
1,000 42 2 i

Presented 1,000 souvenirs (hand-made
by the land Registry colleagues) to the
elderly during the 29th Hong Kong
Dance Festival for the Elderly (Final)

e
& ES

—E-TF_-A-+/)\H
28 February 2010

12 ssinsmeesse —TThs-—T-TF5H
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2MEB L mEBRNRAHTE
Ml A
Participated in the Skip Lunch Day

e e organised by The Community Chest

of Hong Kong
n

EEEL RGBS ER RO RBE]
=T EIT AR D & B 12 1 2009/104F £
Awarded the Caring Organisation logo
2009/10 by the Hong Kong Council of

Social Service

ERewHEg RS ERRERE AL Sm UK
¥ & 3 e 2 TR % R R -

Presented with a souvenir by The NAAC Shanghai
Fraternity Association Care and Attention Home For the
Elderly in recognition of the Land Regisiry Volunteers

Team’s service over the years
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i METEAL
The Land Registry Trading Fund

In August 1993, the land Registry was established as one of Hong Kong's first Trading Fund Departments. The trading
fund concept is an approach fo public financing designed to encourage greater focus on improving services and

responding fo customer needs. The land Regisfrar serves as the General Manager of the Land Registry Trading Fund.

Under the trading fund model, the land Registry remains a public agency but is responsible for its own finances and
must meet its expenditure from the income derived from fees and charges for the services that it provides. The Trading
Fund pays dividends to public funds but may otherwise retain profits fo invest for service improvements. In particular, it

has autonomy over capital investment projects that will support its services and has flexibility to redeploy staff to
respond fo the service needs of clients and customers.

The Trading Fund’s Annual Report and the certified financial statements by the Director of Audit must be tabled in the
legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region each year.
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Vision, Mission, Values and Functions

Our Vision

To be the best in all that we do.

Our Mission

. To ensure secure, customer friendly land regisfration and information services.

*  To advocate reform of Hong Kong's land registration system through infroduction of title registration.

Our Values

Infegrity —  fo cusfomers, partners and colleagues we observe the highest ethical standards.

Excellence —  we aim to excel in all that we do.

Respect —  we show respect and frust to our customers, parters and colleagues.

learning  —  we leam constanily from each other, from our pariners, customers and comparable organisations

elsewhere how tfo provide better services fo the community.

Our Value to Hong Kong

e Over half of all Hong Kong families are registered property owners.

. Banks and financial institutions loan over HK$1,442 billion against the security of registered land and property.

®  Over five million searches of registered information fake place each year.

. Over 80 Government departments and agencies use the land Regisiry's information for purposes ranging from

planning studies fo security investigations.

J Registered information fraces back to 1844 — providing resources for the economic and social history of Hong

Kong.

2009 - 2010 Annual Report - The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong ] 7
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Vision, Mission, Values and Functions
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Vision, Mission, Values and Functions

Functions

The land Registry’s main functions are fo:

e aodminister a land registration system by maintaining an up-o-
date land register and the related land records under the
land Registration  Ordinance (Cap. 128) and its

regulations;

*  provide the public with focilities for search of the land

register and other land records; LSS

. provide Government departments and agencies with

property information; and

. process applications for the incorporation of owners under the

Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344).

2009 - 2010 Annual Report - The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong ] Q
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(a) #HEREB
Organisation Structure

i 5 AR AR 2R 4B B (B E201043A31H)
Organisation Chart of the Land Registry (as at 31 March 2010)

m2NER —— m tHEAMECE — m BB ———— m BEEARE
REPIARAE R Registry Manager ~ General Support Departmental
Deeds Registration Services Division Secretary
& Departmental
Services Branch m EEREFREH m B THERELSE
Management & (BEBREFRY)
Customer Services Deputy Registry
Division Manager / Management
& Customer Services
m ERRHFARE S m A TEmELE
Search & Departmental (EM R RE)
Services Division Deputy Registry
Manager / Search &
Departmental Services
m EREES — m BLHERELE
m tHEREER Registration (AR
Land Registrar Services Division Deputy Registry Manager /
Registration Services
mEREES —— m ALuERELE
Project Development (HEER)
Division Deputy Registry Manager /
Project Development
m ERERN mEEREN —— w EREEY —— m DEEEES
Legal Services Deputy Principal Legal Services Assistant Principal
Branch Solicitor Division Solicitor
mBEN ———— m XBEE m B ———— m AEBEE
Financial Services Business Manager Financial Services Deputy Business
Branch Division Manager
m REEMEITH mEEIHEMREE
Title Registration (SEHERETR)
Operation Division Principal Land Registration
Officer / Title Registration

m REEMEEN — m RREEMRRECE - w EANLEER m ARGRE
Title Registration Title Registration Information Technology Chief Systems
Development Development Management Division Manager

Branch M w P PN -
e anager m EEEMRERIES — m ATHIE GEEER)
Title Registration Policy &  Chief Executive Officer /
Administration Division Title Registration

20 sstunmaeEEs —EEAZ-T-TEEH
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THEMEEREERESE
The Land Registrar and Branch Heads
01 = tt B§ % £ Ms. Olivia NIP, J.P. 04  HHREF LT Mrs. Edith TONG
+ 3 5 il B B & Land Registrar 2R AT 8% R 4838 Title Registration Development Manager
02 ZFH 5t Ms. Angel LI 05  ZFEFBL T Miss Fion LI
&l & J& 2 B0 Deputy Principal Solicitor 3t 51 1 BE 42 72 Registry Manager

03  #3&REZFE LT Mrs. Emily CHIK
% 75 48 22 Business Manager

2009 - 2010 Annual Report - The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong 2 ]
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22 ¥y = M % B0 P AR 75

Deeds Registration & Departmental Services Branch

01 BREZHR % T Ms. Allan CHAN 10 ZIIRAEL S &£ Mr. Andas LAU

BB + 30 5%l BE 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager B IR + 30 5% BE 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager
02 BFEWE S 4 Mr. Kenneth POON 11 BREXMi LT Ms. Peggy CHAN

% 7 BR 7% 4¢ 38 Customer Service Manager Bl 1 3 5 R AL 32 Deputy Registry Manager
03 BFHEX LT Ms. Delphine MA 12 ZEBER K4 Mr. Alfred LEE

BB + 3t 5%l BE 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager B E 4F (BUR) Assistant Secretary (Policy)
04 BI7E® & £ Miss Kathy LAU 13 21T 4+ Ms. Eva LAU

B I & i 53 1 BE 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager S BR K %% & 4832 Training & Development Manager
05  PREBZ KL Mr. Steve CHAN 14 ZFFHB L L Miss Fion LI

#BF9 = £ 3 & Departmental Secretary = 3t 7 1 B2 48 32 Registry Manager
06 EEELEE M. STKO 15 FR{ESR%E Mr. WCYUEN

= A % £ Senior Executive Bl + 3 5 i R AL 32 Deputy Registry Manager
07  FRE#ZL T Ms. Adeline CHAN 16 EBEE%Z T Ms. Karen TANG

Bl &6 P9 3 E % F Deputy Departmental Secretary B IR + 30 5% BE 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager
08  ZFEEEBSKAE Mr. Patrick LI 17 iR & £ Mrs. Cindy LAM

&l ZB P9 &= £ ¥ & Deputy Departmental Secrefary B I8 & it 5F 1 R 48 22 Assistant Registry Manager
09  REEEZL T Ms. Winnie CHEUNG 18 #IEBH#SKE Mr. John WAI

B IR + b 51 1 B2 48 I8 Assistant Registry Manager Bl + 3 51 1 BZ 4238 Deputy Registry Manager
22 spisnmaLEE: —TThE-T—
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EREBHE

Legal Services Branch

01 R LEREE Mr. MK TAM 09 R EFF LT Ms. Wilcie LEUNG
= &% 12 B Senior Solicitor 72 EM Solicitor

02 REBL L Ms. Adele NG 10 t5# &t Ms. Majestic YEUNG
72 EM Solicitor = 4 12 B Senior Solicitor

03  HER LT Ms. Kitty SUEN 11 RBEFL L Ms. Stephanie WAN
72 EM Solicitor 72 EM Solicitor

04  RiR¥ %t Ms. Lisa YUEN 12 ZEH4 £ Ms. Christina CHOI
= 4% 12 B Senior Solicitor = 4% 12 B Senior Solicitor

05  BR#E &t Ms. Lauren CHAN 13 #|E &L L Ms. Florence WONG
2 EM Solicitor 72 EM Solicitor

06 ZFEH 5Lt Ms. Angel LI 14 BHEFE LT Miss Jessica LAW
&l & /& 2 A Deputy Principal Solicitor 2R Solicitor

0/  REEL T Ms. Juliet LEUNG 15 BEB &t Miss Queenie KIU
= 4 12 B Senior Solicitor 72 EM Solicitor

08  HEZEE LI Ms. Therese TSANG
B B2 & JF 2Bl Assistant Principal Solicitor
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Financial Services Branch

01 #REZFE LT Mrs. Emily CHIK
3 T £ 12 Business Manager

02 PREIBASE 4% Mr. Albert CHAN
Bl 2 7% 48 12 Deputy Business Manager

24  sntunmEeEEs —TEAS-T-TEER

03

04

#5718 5 4 Mr. Eddie MUI
[ 7% & 5T B Treasury Accountant

EEFEEMLTYYIP
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Title Registration Development Branch
Ol REHBISTE Mr. Francis WAN

Bl 1 3t 5T 11 BZ 42 32 Deputy Registry Manager
02 PBRIEEE Mr. Wallace CHAN

B I8 + 3t 5% i} B2 A8 32 Assistant Registry Manager
03 B EIESE Mr. KF PANG

& 4 b 53 55 45X 32 Deputy Registry Manager
04 BREIEZ L Ms. Emily CHAN

= 4% {F Senior Executive
05  FREBEK LT Miss Helen CHEUNG

BB + b 5% it B2 A€ 22 Assistant Registry Manager
06 EBF LT Ms. Evian WONG

BHIE 4 3 5% it B A 32 Assistant Registry Manager
0/ H#EELZ L Ms. ElaTIN

B I8 4 3t 5% it B A I8 Assistant Registry Manager
08 Bt Ms. Alice LEUNG

B I8 + 3t 5% i} B A8 32 Assistant Registry Manager
09  #EE &t Miss Wendy WONG

B & & 1F Publicity Officer
10 RBR LT Ms. Michelle NG

4217 E fE Chief Executive Officer
11 ARBHEZL L Mrs. Amy FONG

B & £ 3 5 i & ££ Principal Land Registration Officer
12 B®EF %L Mrs. Edith TONG

3 #5188 R 4532 Title Registration Development Manager
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IR E & Mr. Gary LAI
R GLAEIR Chief Systems Manager

i 7 %5 5 & Mr. KH POON
= R R B AL R Senior Systems Manager

75 {& 5t &£ Mr. Tony FONG
& #9718 B #5328 Contract Project Manager

BRSNS Mr. Luis YIP
4 #9718 B #5328 Contract Project Manager

@ E %t Ms. Iris CHING
& #9178 B #3# Contract Project Manager

FIE5EE Mr. SSWAN
F AR Systems Manager

275 AL 5t &£ Mr. Philip LEUNG
F AL IE Systems Manager

E L8 % & Mr. Peter WAI
A #9178 B #8328 Confract Project Manager

{44 R 55 & Mr. Albert NG
=R R G HEIR Senior Systems Manager

HEREIRE 4 Mr. CKYIU
RTHLIR Systems Manager

PR & 2232 % T Mrs. Alison CHAN
B3R + 5 B 48 32 Assistant Registry Manager
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(b) Management Structure
®  Under the land Registrar, the land Regisiry is organised info four functional branches each headed by a

directorate staff.

e The deparimental grade of land Registration Officer ([RO) forms the backbone of the land Registry

overseeing various operational functions and provision of public services.

*  The department is also supported by legal, financial and IT professionals, and general grades staff.

() Branch Functions

Deeds Registration and Departmental Services Branch

To provide services for registration of documents affecting land in Hong Kong.

e To provide services for search of the land register, imaged documents and other land records.

*  To provide reports-onditle services to Government departments.

*  To process applications for the incorporation of owners under the Building Management Ordinance.
*  To provide customer services as well as to anficipate and respond to customers’ needs.

e  To manage and develop the RO grade.

e To plan for the development of the workforce through comprehensive training programmes to meet the

business needs of the land Registry.

e  To plan, manage and review human resources, office accommodation and administrative systems.
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Legal Services Branch
e  To provide legal advisory and support services on departmental functions relating to the deeds registration

sysfem and the registration of incorporation of owners under the Building Management Ordinance.

e To provide legal advisory and support services in the preparation for implementation of the land Titles
Ordinance (TO), o conduct TO review, fo prepare relevant rules and statutory forms, and to provide

professional guidance fo practitioners.

Financial Services Branch
e To prepare and control budgets, to manage financial accounts, to evaluate costing, fees and charges, and

fo review accounting procedures and financial systems.
*  To manage departmental supplies and sfores.

Title Registration Development Branch
e To provide policy and administrative support fo the implementation of the tile registration system and

secretarial support to major consultative committees concerning the [TO and the fitle registration system.

*  To develop operational practices and design new registration processes for the title registration system, and
fo plan and implement public education and professional training programmes on the fitle registration

system.

e To manage and oversee the daily operation and on-going enhancement of the Integrated Registration
Information System (RIS), to implement a new search system, fo develop suitable computer systems to

support the fille registration system, and to provide IT support for various services in the land Registry.
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HIGHLIGHT

Registration of land documents and search of land registers/land records increased 26.3% and 25.7% respectively
as compared with 2008/09.

The number of RIS Online Services subscribers reached 818 with 66 new customers since reduction of the

application fee and minimum deposit for subscriber account on 1 October 2009.

More service improvements infroduced including the launch of enhanced e-Memorial Form, enrichment of computer

database with Chinese sfreet names and revamp of Interactive Voice Response System.
1,036 commendations received from customers, a significant increase of 167% from 2008,/09.

Received the First Runnerup of the Service Enhancement Award (Small Department category) in the Civil Service
Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2009, and the Public Organisation Award in The Ombudsman’s Awards
2000.

(a)

Services and Workload

The major services provided by the land Regisiry are:

. registration of land documents;
*  search of land registers and supply of copies of imaged documents and other land records; and
. regisfration of incorporation of owners under the Building Management Ordinance.
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()  Registration of Land Documents
Documents affecting land are delivered to our Customer Centre af Queensway Government Offices for

registration.

In 2009/10, 749,342 land documents were delivered for registration, an increase of 26.3% when
compared with 2008/09.

No. of Land Documents Delivered for Registration

No.
850,000 —
799,033
(o)
O
o 749 342
750,000 0
O
O
]
664,628 o
O
650,000 - B
O ]
© 591,968 o 593,328
O O
O O O O
O ] O O
550,000 - ! - ! - ! - !

2005/06  2006/07  2007/08  2008/09 2009/10  Year

Maijor types of documents received include sale and purchase agreements [SPAs), assignments, mortgages/
legal charges and their respective receipts/discharges/releases which collectively accounted for about 82%

of all documents received during the vear.

Distribution of Land Documents Delivered for Registration in 2009/10

131,796 156,109
(17.6% (20.8%)
B Agreements for Sale & Purchase
4,941 :
07% 4L B Assignments
B Mortgages/legal Charges
Receipts/Discharges/Releases
150,343
[20.1%)
168,838 B (eases/Tenancy Agreements
(22.5%)
Others
137,315
(18.3%)
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Among the SPAs of all building units delivered for registration in 2009/10, the number of SPAs of
residential units and its fotal consideration were 131,877 (+74.7% from last year] and $495936 million
[+89.8% from last year] respectively. The number of these agreements is generally regarded as a key

indicator of the level of activity in the property market.

No. and Consideration of Sale and Purchase Agreements of

Residential Units Delivered for Registration

600,000
503,093 495,936

500,000 A /
400,000

284,593 255473/ \ /
300,000 — Ny

261,287

200,000 06.944 137,164 131,877
: 88076 M
100,000 . = \75.’@/'

O L L L L
2005/06  2006/07  2007/08  2008/09 2009/10  Year

—m— No. —@— Consideration (HK$ million)

Remark:  The figures are derived from SPAs of residential units delivered for registration in the Land Registry for the relevant periods. Sales of
residential units refer to those SPAs with payment of stamp duty. The statistics do not include sales of units under the Home
Ownership Scheme, the Private Sector Participation Scheme and the Tenants Purchase Scheme except those after payment of

premium.
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Similar to previous years, the majority of the land transactions in 2009/10 were within the consideration

range of one fo two million dollars.

No. of Sale & Purchase Agreements of Residential Units
by Range of Consideration

No.

60,000 —

50,000 —

40,000 —

30,000 —

20,000
10,000 .'
O ..‘_/

Less than 1 Ttolessthan 2 2tolessthan 3 3tolessthan 5 5 to less than 10 10 or over

Range of Consideration (HK$ million)

2007,/08 . 2008,/09 ‘ 2009/10

Range of Consideration 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10

(HKS million) No. % No. % No. %
less than | 19.020 139 9579 12.7 10,076 7.6
1 to less than 2 50,003 36.5 30,434 40.3 48,629 36.9
2 to less than 3 23,716 17.3 13,005 18.4 25,878 19.6
3 to less than 5 23,248 169 11,384 15.1 26,507 20.1
5 to less than 10 13,768 10.0 6,278 8.3 13,210 10.0
10 or over 7409 54 3,898 52 7,577 5.7
Total 137164 100.0 75,478 100.0 131,877 100.0

Note:  Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due fo rounding
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(i)  Search Services
land records are maintained by the land Regisiry primarily for the purpose of providing a property-related

information platform to enhance transparency and facilitate property transactions.

In 2009/10, the tofal number of searches of land registers and supplies of imaged copies and
photocopies of land records were 5,819,397 (+25.7% from previous year) and 720,351 (+11.1% from

previous year) respectively.

No. of Searches of Land Registers &
Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land Records Supplied

No.
7,000,000 —
6,000,000 [~ %ﬁ
= = = =
5000000~ = = =—
4,000,000 |~
3,000,000 —
2,000,000 [~
1,000,000 —
O 1 1 1 1 J
2005/06  2006/07  2007/08  2008/09  2009/10  Year
= Imaged Copies and Photocopies of @ Searches of land Registers
Land Records Supplied
Year 2005/06  2006/07  2007/08  2008/09  2009/10
Searches of land Registers 4,504,151 4,392,580 5396269 4,628,256 5,819,397
Imaged Copies and Photocopies
of land Records Supplied 670,771 648,326 704,873 648,206 720,351
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Since February 2005, the land Regisiry has been providing search services over the Internet via our RIS
Online Services af www.iris.gov.hk for 16 hours a day, seven days a week. The public can conduct
searches on either an ad hoc or a subscription basis. Searches conducted online constituted about Q0% of
the tofal search volume. The remaining 10% were conducted over the counter. Counter search service is
available at our Customer Centre in Queensway Government Offices and the New Territories Search
Offices (NTSOs) in Tai Po, Yuen long and Tsuen Wan disfricts.

No. of Searches of Land Registers

No. of Searches

7,000,000

5,819,397

6,000,000 5396269 /'
4,628,256
5,000,000 | 4504151 4,392,580 M~ 40628, =

I\.%;m\./\./i?%, 135
4,000,000 —w

3,805231 3,811,922 4,001,126

3,000,000
2,000,000
1 ,OO0,000 698,920 580,658 588.094 537.130 6H-262
= - —a
0 1 1 1 1

2005/06  2006/07  2007/08 2008/09 2009/10  Year

—@— Counter searches. —— Online searches —#— Tofal

To further promote the IRIS Online Services, the application fee and minimum deposit for subscriber
accounts were reduced with effect from 1 October 2009. As a result, the number of subscribers increased

by 66 (+8.8%), reaching a record of 818 by March 2010.

(iii) Owners’ Corporation Services
The land Registry is responsible for registration of incorporation of owners and search of owners’
corporation records under the Building Management Ordinance. The Ordinance, which falls within the
policy jurisdiction of the Home Affairs Bureau, aims to enable owners of multistorey buildings to esfablish

owners' corporations to deal with building management matters.

In 2009/10, 315 new owners' corporations have been formed. The fotal number of owners’ corporations
in the territory reached 9,041.
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(b) Performance Pledges
The Land Registry launched the performance pledges since 1993, which are reviewed annually. In 2009/10, we
exceeded dll the performance pledges and infroduced further enhancements in our pledges or service standards.
In particular, we introduced a new performance pledge for registration of re-submitted stopped deeds in 16
working days. We also enhanced performance target in the supply of certified copies of computerised land
registers and imaged copies without oversize plans over the counter from 96% to 97%, and enhanced service
standard in the delivery of Monthly Memorial Information on Mortgage Transactions data files from five to four

working days. We will continue our commitment to improve the quality and efficiency of services.

() Customer Services

Service is at the core of the land Registry's mission. Our aim is to deliver valueformoney quality services to our

customers, and fo foster partnership of frust with our existing and prospective customers. To this end, we
strengthened our dedicated Management and Cusfomer Services Division during the year to meet the growing

expeciation of customers.

(i)  Customer Feedback
In 2009/10, the Lland Registry received 1,036 commendations through the cusfomer service hotline, Land
Regisiry’s homepage, comment cards, letters and emails. This represents a significant increase of 167% from
2008/09.

The chart below shows the customer satisfaction rate drawn from feedback through comment cards:

Customer Satisfaction Rate

Per Cent
100 — 843 88.5 7
-
15 1= 32
10.4
10 — 8.7
5 —
] 45 0.8
5 0.50.5 | o 03 | 0.2 0 g |
2007,/08 2008/09 2009/10 Year
Very Satisfied Satisfied Average . Dissatisfied . Very Dissatisfied

We also received 13 suggestions and 25 complaints in 2009/10. All the suggestions and complaints were

promptly addressed and fully responded to help us strive for continuous service improvements.
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(i)  Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme g% <) ¥ F ST FESA0E B
!_'!': 'QE ‘::!1.;". 'S.'Er'v':!.-.":c.-: L

2009 r
In recognition of the land Registry's achievements
and continuous efforts in providing quality services
fo the public, the department was awarded the First
Runnerup of the Service Enhancement Award (Small
Department category) in the Civil Service
Outstanding  Service Award Scheme 2009

organised by the Civil Service Bureau.

(iii) The Ombudsman’s Awards 2009
The land Registry received the Public Organisation Award in the Ombudsman’s Awards 2009. The award

was a recogniion of the department's positive and supporfive stance fowards the Ombudsman'’s
investigations of complaints, which helped bring about improvements in service quality and promote fairness

in public administration.

(i) Customer Management Assessment Framework (CMA 101)
CMA 101 is a structured self-assessment programme launched by the Efficiency Unit to help departments

identify potential improvement areas and support confinuous enhancement in custfomer management.

As one of the pilot participating departments, the land Registry completed the exercise in July 2008 and

drew up a high level action plan for monitoring implementation of enhancement inifiatives.

The initiatives delivered in 2009/10 included ‘validation and updating of customer records” and
"categorisation of customer feedbacks” which assisted in promoting a customer centric culture and effective
handling of the suggestions and responses of the customers. We would further work on the remaining itfems

according tfo the action plan.

(vy  Customer Service Survey
A customer service survey was conducted in March 2010 fo gauge the customer satisfaction level of Land

Regisiry’s services and for identifying areas for enhancing the services.

About 450 customers' opinions were collected. The overall satisfaction rate of our services is over 84%.

Results on the maijor service areas are listed below:

Overall Satisfaction Rate (%)

Service Provision of Service Staff Performance

lodgement of Deeds 890 20.0
Counter Search 4.1 95.0
IRIS Online Services 82.5 Not Applicable

The survey also fapped customers’ views on eMemorial Form and title registration system. Comments

received provided valuable information for planning the projects.
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(vi) Interactive Voice Response System (IVRS)
The functions and capacity of the IVRS of the land Registry’s customer service hotline (3105 0000) was

further improved in 2009/10 to enhance system security and add convenience to customers:

e fax requesfs from callers without callerIDs displayed disallowed so as to strengthen the security of the
system;

®  number of service telephone lines doubled from 12 to 24; and

e call flow streamlined by moving popular options such as “talk to operator” forward in the menu.

(viij Liaison with Customers

Customer Liaison Groups
Two Customer Lliaison Groups, one for private secfor cusfomers and one for Government departments and

public bodies, have been set up for regular liaison and communication with our stakeholders.

The objectives of the Cusfomer Llicison Groups are:

* o improve the Land Regisiry's understanding of customers' needs and expeciations;
®  fo improve customers’ understanding of the land Regisiry’s policies, services and procedures; and
® {0 exchange views on operational and service delivery issues.

The private sector group comprises representatives from the legal community, professional bodies and trade
associations while the public sector group comprises of representatives from major user departments.

Membership of the private sector and the public sector groups is af Annexes (a) and (b).

Customer Liaison Group (Public Sector) & P Bt 4% /N4l (1A & ##)

land Registry Joint Standing Committee

The land Regisiry Joint Standing Committee, comprising the land Registrar, her senior management team
and representatives of the law Society of Hong Kong, meets regularly to discuss and exchange views on
land registration matters, the land Registry’s services provided to the legal practitioners and implementation

of title registration system. Membership of the Committee is at Annex [c).
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Visitors
The land Regisiry maintains close fies with its counterparts in all parts of the world for crossfertilisation.
Through meefing visitors from overseas and the Mainland, we infroduce our services and promote the value

of the land Registry as well as learn from our counterparts’ best practices in other jurisdictions.

In 2009/10, we received two delegations comprising 36 visitors from Beijing, Shanghai and Shandong

who were interested in our work and the land registration system in Hong Kong.

Reaching Out to Customers
To enhance users' knowledge of land records and understanding of the reports-ondille services, four "Meet

the Clients” sessions for the Buildings Department, Planning Department, Hong Kong Police Force, Home

Affairs Department and Fire Services Depariment with a total of 200 participants were held during the

year.

il e

gy
-t E‘ oy

A -

- AN

= Ty

In addition, seven briefing sessions with 225 participants from private and public sectors were held in
February and March 2010 tfo infroduce the enhanced features of the IRIS Online Services, and provide
updates on progress in implementation of a new search system and enhanced functions of the e-Memorial

Form.

Both activities had provided an effective platform for sharing work knowledge and experience, exchanging

views and identifying means fo streamline work procedures, and collecting views on our services.

land Registry Open Day
As part of our efforts fo promote better understanding of the role and functions of the land Regisiry, we
arranged a series of wellreceived guided tours to the Customer Centre, the Central Imaging Centre and

the Land Registry Archive for 170 visitors in March 2010.

Historic and rare land records, such as Memorial No. 1 registered in 1844, deeds registered during the
Japanese Occupation and the Street Index published in 1894, were showcased. The event bore wimess to

transformation of the land Registry over the years as Hong Kong developed into a world-class economy.
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(viij Communication Channels
The land Registry makes use of a wide spectrum of communication channels to promote and update its
services, to receive feedbacks from customers on service quality, and fo identify improvement areas,

including:

land Registry Circular Memoranda
In 2009/10, we have issued five Land Registry Circular Memoranda to update stakeholders of the changes
in land registration related policy, operations, practices and procedures, and the new initiatives and

services.

land Registry News

Two issues of the land Regisiry News on updated events, new service inifiatives and service enhancements

were published in 2009/10.

Information leaflets
Three new information leaflets were produced during the year to complement the information pack on the

land Registry’s full range of services.

Customer Service Hofline
Through our collaboration with the Efficiency Unit's 1823 Call Centre, the customer service hotline is

extended fill closure of IRIS Online Services at 00:30 hour next day.

lond Registry’s Homepage
During the year, there were over four million visits (70% on the Chinese language and 30% on the English

language] to the lond Regisiry's homepage, representing an increase of 25% when compared with

2008/09.

IRIS Website
To facilitate communication with the users of the IRIS Online Services, broadcast messages are posted on

the IRIS website to nofify users of any service enhancements or changes in a timely manner.

(d) Development Projects and New Services
(i)  E-Memorial Form for Lodgement
In July 2009, the land Regisiry released an enhanced version of the e-Memorial Form. It has raised the
usage rate by about 50% to account for about 45% of the lodgements. With a 2-dimension barcode
embedded in the new form, the conventional data entry work by registration staff is significantly reduced.

The automation has greatly improved the efficiency and accuracy of updating the land registers.

To make the e-Memorial Form a powerful tool for preparing memorials, we are designing new functions
such as bulk input and autofilling up of address by using Property Reference Number. The enhancements

are expected fo be available for frial use in the first half of 2011.
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(i)  Enriching the Computer Database with Chinese Street Names to Enable Land Search by Chinese
Address
When RIS was implemented in 2005, it inherited a legacy dafabase containing only street name
information in English. To enhance its userfriendliness, the land Regisiry has been enriching the database
with Chinese street names. Searchers can now enjoy the convenience of using Chinese address information

for searching land registers.

(iii) Standard Terms Document
The lond Regisiry will propose amendments to the land Registration Ordinance, as a consequential
amendment under the land Tifles (Amendment) Bill, o enable the deposit of standard terms documents in

the Land Regisiry. The proposed provisions will reduce the bulk of documents presented for registration.

(iv) Inter-departmental Projects
The land Registry is providing the Rafing and Voluation Department with up-to-date address information and
land records, and rendering assistance in its data alignment work for implementation of the Property

Information Online service.

The concerted interdepartmental efforts have enhanced the transparency of the property market as members

of the public can now obtain property information in a more comprehensive and efficient way.

(e) Future Plan 45
()  Enhanced Performance Pledges for 2010/11
The deeds registration process comprises two main  working procedures:
updating of land registers and imaging of registered land documents. To further
improve our service, the service standard for updating of land registers will be
enhanced from 12 to 11 working days and the fotal working days for registration

will be reduced from 16 to 15.

(i)  Customer Service Survey 2010/11
In keeping with our customer centric culiure, we plan to conduct a large-scale customer service survey in
the first quarter of 2011. This aims to benchmark progress since the last survey and to identify priorities for

improvement and areas for future development.

(iii) Extension of Service Hours of Customer Service Hotline
As part of our continuous improvement efforts, we plan to extend the service hours of the customer service
hotline round the clock to align with the extension of online search hours from 16 hours to 20 hours a day

by the launch of the new search systfem in the third quarter of 2010.
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Title Registration

HIGHLIGHT

*  The outcome of the consultation exercise on "Amendments to land Titles Ordinance” that ended on 31 March
2009 indicated that there was strong public support for retaining the automatic conversion mechanism under the
land Tifles Ordinance (LTO) enacted in 2004. Respondents were also in favour of making limited exceptions to

the rectification and indemnity arrangements under the LTO.

. In view of the divergent views received on the mandatory recfification rule under the LTO, we will closely engage

stakeholders with a view to identifying a consensus for taking forward the [TO amendment exercise.

o The TV series "Stories of Our land" was well received and was among the top 20 programmes in the 2009 TV
Programme Appreciation Index Survey (Phase 1). The programme helped raise public awareness of security of

property rights and the fitle registration system.

(@) Recent Development
(i)  Consultation on Amendments to LTO
A three-month public consultation on the amendments to the LTO in respect of the conversion mechanism
and the rectification and indemnity provisions ended on 31 March 2009. Maijor stakeholders and members

of the public had submitted their views.

The result of the public consuliation indicated that there was g s

general support for retaining aufomatic  conversion of land

registered under the land Registration Ordinance fo title
registration regime twelve years affer the commencement of the
[TO. Respondents were also in favour of making limited
exceptions to the mandatory rectification rule where it would be
practically impossible to restore the fifle of an innocent former

owner who was displaced as a result of fraud.

All views and submissions as well as the Administration’s response

have been posted onto the consultation webpage of the land
Regisiry’s homepage. We have dlso reported the outcome of the public consultation exercise to the Joint
Subcommittee on Amendments fo LTO under the Panel on Development and the Panel on Administration of

Justice and legal Services of the legislative Council {legCo Joint Subcommittee).

(i)  Public Engagement
To take forward the omendment exercise of the LTO, the land Regisiry has been maintaining close liaison
with stakeholders. The land Registrar also chairs an [TO Steering Committee with representatives from the
Consumer Council, the law Society of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Bar Association, the Heung Yee Kuk,
the Hong Kong Association of Banks, the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation, the Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong and the Estate Agents Authority, which provides a useful platform for stakeholders

fo exchange views on the [TO amendment exercise.
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In addition, the land Regisiry has been regularly reporting on its work progress to the legCo Joint
Subcommittee. Papers and documents submitted to the legCo Joint Subcommittee are available at the land

Regisiry's homepage.

(ili) TV Programme — “Stories of Our Land”
The ten-episode TV series “Stories of Our land” jointly produced by the land Registry and Radio Television
Hong Kong has been successful in reaching out to the community for raising public awareness of the land

registration system and the coming reform fo fitle registration system.

Both the Chinese and English versions of the TV programme were broadcast in 2009. The programme was
well received by the audience and it was among the top 20 programmes in the 2009 TV Programme

Appreciation Index Survey (Phase 1).

We have also produced and distributed trilingual DVDs of the programme to all primary and secondary

schools, tertiary institutes and public libraries to sustain our efforts in promoting public awareness of the

close relationship of land registration with their everyday life.

(ivy  Preparation of Land Titles (Amendment) Bill
o Consultation with Various Departments
The land Regisiry continued the consuliation with departments in relation to issues arising from the
inferrelationship between the LTO and ordinances under their purview and also on rights and charges
created under their respective ordinances. The land Registry and the departments worked closely with

a view fo addressing and resolving any conflicts identified.

o Preparation of Subsidiary legislation
Preparatory work for the drafting of the rules i.e. land Titles Rules, Land Titles Court Rules, land Titles
Indemnity Fund Rules and land Tifles (Fees and levies) Rules and land Titles Transitional Rules was

underway.

(b) Future Plan
Recently, the major stakeholders expressed divergent views on the potential implications of the mandatory
rectification rule under the LTO upon the conclusiveness of the title register. As any fundamental changes to the
recfification and indemnity provisions of the [TO would have farreaching implications on the TO and ifs
implementation timetable, we are making the best efforts to engage stakeholders with a view to identifying

common grounds for taking the LTO forward.

Meanwhile, we will continue with the preparation of the amendment bill. We are also planning for the publicity
and public education programmes for fifle registration and will work closely with our stakeholders and relevant

organisations in taking forward the programmes before commencement of tifle registration.
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HIGHLIGHT
®  The total number of staff as at 31 March 2010 was 597, including 456 permanent staff and 141 contract staff.

®  The annual departmental training plan provides a blueprint for planning and arranging sfaff training ranging from
job related skills to professional development in order to enable all staff to perform well and to render excellent

service.

. Effective communication with staff at all levels is maintained through regular meefings, publications and  staff

welfare functions.

®  Our sfaff are dedicated in supporting good corporate citizenship.
o We advocate green management and will confinue to explore ways fo reduce resources consumption in our
operation.

(a) Staffing
The lond Registry maintains a wellfrained, highly flexible
team of sfaff. Civil servants form the core staff of the Land
Regisiry to ensure stability in the organisation and quality of
service to customers. Non-civil Service Contract (NCSC) staff
are employed fo supplement the core staff thus enabling the
department to respond fo changes in operational or business

needs in the most costeffective manner.

As at 31 March 2010, the land Registry employed 456
permanent staff and 141 NCSC staff. The permanent staff

comprise officers in various grades including ROs, Solicitors,
Treasury  Accountants,  Analyst/Programmers  and  general
grades staff. They are supplemented by NCSC staff including land Registration Executives, Solicitors, Accounting
Executives, IT staff and contract clerks. The land Registry reviews its staffing position and adjusts the number of

NCSC staff regularly to meet operational needs.

(b) Staff Training
Staff training is a critical component to facilitate the human resource development of the land Registry. We strive
to provide opportunities and encouragement for staff at all stages of their career to redlise their potential. To this
end, we have developed a series of wellplanned and qudlity training programmes that helped staff to work with
confidence, strengthen teamwork and commitment to service excellence, and support confinuous improvement in

individual and departmental performance.
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In the year, we arranged over 3,300 days of training
on a wide spectrum of subjects and through various
modes. Highlights of training octivities arranged in
2009/10 are as follows:

Theme Training

Theme training has been a core element of our staff
development  programme to promote organisational
alignment and solidarity among staff members. The

theme for 2009/10 was “Aligned in One Godl,

Ahead We All Go'. The one-day experiential training for over 500 staff members af all ranks and grades

spreading over 18 workshops were conducted in a secluded fraining environment away from the workplace.

Professional, Management and language Training
Throughout the vyear, the department organised a wide range of training courses fo enhance the core

competencies of staff members.

A legal fraining course on “law of Confract” was arranged for the Officer Grades staff to reinforce their

understanding on basic legal concepts and principles relating to land and property.

To equip newly recruited Officer Grades staff with the knowledge and skills required for effective management,

we organised tailormade courses on  “Supervisory
Management” and "Performance Appraisal Writing and

Inferview”.

Putonghua and  English courses were provided to
enhance stoff's confidence in communicating  with

customers in both Chinese and English.

We dalso regularly arranged talks and briefing sessions

by other Government departments and business
partners in the private sector to broaden our senior staff's knowledge and exposure on land-related subjects,

Government policies and topical issues.

Selflearning
In addifion to conventional classroom fraining, the land Regisiry encourages selflearning through e-learning
programme. All staff are granted one day elleaming whereby they are free from their office work to pursue self-

learning of various interested fopics at our learning Resource Centre.
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() Staff Development and Management Initiatives
To broaden staff's perspectives so that they can anticipate and meet new challenges, strengthen their
communication and presentation skills and develop policy formulation and leadership capacities, a wide spectrum

of staff development activities have been arranged. In 2009/10,

e one Chief land Registration Officer was arranged fo work in the Development Bureau for six months under

the Secrefariat Attachment Programme;

e five Senior land Registration Officers had attended the “Management Development Programme” af The

Hong Kong University of Science and Technology; and

e one Senior Systems Manager had attended the Govlech 2010 Conference in Singapore.

(d) Staff Motivation and Recognition
As a Trading Fund department, we put great emphasis in staff motivation and recognition as part of our pursuit

of excellence in customer services.

Staff Suggestions Scheme
The Staff Suggestions Committee was set up since 1993 with the objective of promoting constructive cooperation

and team effort among staff to achieve better efficiency and productivity.

Fifleen staff suggestions on various issues including improvement of service quality, operation, environmental

profection, IT security, Christmas card design and efficient use of resources were received in the year and awards

were granted.

Best Staff of the Year Award Scheme
The annual award scheme “Best Staff of the Year”, first infroduced in 1997, aims to mofivate sfaff, promote work

commitment and give recognition fo staff with remarkable contributions.

In November 2009, the land Registry’s sfaff were invited fo vote among themselves the “Best Staff”. Three prizes

were awarded.

long Service Appreciation Award Scheme
The long Service Appreciation Award Scheme, launched in 1999, is another annual award to give recognition to

staff with long and meriforious service.

In 2009, nine staff with 25 or more years of service were awarded, making a fotal of 136 awards since the

Scheme was first introduced.

Best frontline Staff Award Scheme
The land Registry launched its Best Frontline Staff Award in April 2007 to foster a culture of good customer

service and to recognise quality performance and achievements of staff.

Individual sfaff members and teams receiving the highest number of commendations from our customers each
quarter are awarded. The name of the winning staff members and teams are posted at the Customer Centre and

NTSOs, and announced through our major communication channels.
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() Staff Relations
The land Registry recognises that effective communication between management and staff is essential for the
provision of quality service fo cusfomers. We are committed fo providing an environment that promotes
communication among sfaff at all levels through regular staff relations meetings and goodwill visits, departmental

publication, and staff welfare functions.

Departmental Consultative Committee
The Commitlee comprising 14 representatives of various staff groups meets quarterly to promote better

understanding and cooperation between sfaff and the management.

Staff Magazine
The Staff Magazine is a departmental publication issued periodically under an editorial board comprising staff of
various divisions. It is popular among stoff and has helped to promote team spirit and a sense of corporate

identity.

Staff Recreation Club
The Staff Recreation Club is run by staff on a voluntary basis. In 2009/10, it organised a number of social and
recreafional activities for sfaff, including the land Registry’s annual dinner, Christmas party, volunteer social

services, inferest classes and outings.

() Safe Workplace

A safe and comforfable work environment is an important factor to enhance staff's occupational health and

efficiency. The land Registry provides suitable office fumiture and equipment to staff to enhance occupational

health. Fire prevention system and fire fighting equipment are inspected regularly and fire drills are arranged
annually.  Environment and  Sofety Executives are appointed to conduct regular inspections to ensure that

workplaces are free from safety hazards.

(g0 Knowledge Management
The Knowledge Management System has been expanded by phases to cover the workrelated knowledge of all
major operations areas. This electronic platform of sharing knowledge and experience is accessible by all staff
members of the land Registry. Everyday over 200 precedent cases and reference documents are looked up from

the system by colleagues for reference in their daily work.

(h) Corporate Citizenship
()  Supporting Social Services
The land Registry Volunteer Team has joined hands with some ten other Govemment departments to run a
"Crossover Volunteer Project” programme. In 2009/10, the Volunteer Team organised 21 volunteer activiies

and participated in two volunteer activities coordinated by other departments.

In recognition of our contribution, the Hong Kong Council of Social Service awarded the “Caring

Organisation” certificate o the department in March 2010.

(i)  Encouraging Donations
The Land Registry is supportive of donation drives organised by the charities by encouraging staff to donate
or participate in their events. Apart from supporting various activities of the Community Ches!, we have also

participated in the Standard Chartered Marathon since 2002.
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(i) Equal Opportunities
The land Registry is commitied fo eliminating discrimination by employing staff with different degrees of
disability. We also participated in the Social Welfare Department's Sunnyway Programme and the Labour
Department’s  Youth Pre-employment Training — Workplace Attachment Programme tfo  offer training

placements for people in need.

(ivy  Promoting Care for Employees
In 2009/10, 42 seminars on occupational safety and health related issues, such as first aid care, health
fips on the use of computer monitors, occupational health for office workers, prevention of musculoskelefal

disorders and stress management, etc. were arranged for staff.

(v Green Management and Environmental Improvement
The land Registry is commitled fo ensuring its business and daily operations are conducted in an

environmentally responsible manner by:

e  formulating an environmental policy and
. |< ]( . Green Manager Environmental Policy
sethng ouf Sy areas fror actions; Green Housekeeping Green Housekeeping
Working Group Rules
. X . . Environment and Good Environmental
e  adopling good environmental practices in Safety Executives Practices
reducing the consumption of paper and A bVl
energy, reusing office materials and )
Review & Targets &
replacing office consumables with ~ Recommendations . e
Continual
environmental friendly products; and 4 Improvement ¥
e conducting environmental audit inspections Audit oreen
and surprise checks to various offices of
the department to upkeep the momentum in X Implementation K

environmental protection.

The Controlling Officer’s Environmental Report 2009 with detailed environmental performance is available

from the land Registry’s website.

() Future Plan
(i)  Staff Development
The land Registry will confinue to arrange officers to attend local executive development programmes and
centrally organised fraining programmes of the Civil Service Bureau in the coming year. Through the
development and training programmes, officers will be better equipped to make full and effective

confribution to the development of the department.

(i) Green Management
The major impact of the land Regisiry’s business operations on the environment is the consumption of paper
and energy. We will confinue with our efforts to reduce consumption in these areas. These include the
removal of non-essential lighting in offices, the proposal to allow the filing of standard terms documents
(which can substantially reduce the volume of mortgage documents), further promotion of the use of

e-Memorial Form and exploration of the feasibility of double-side prinfing of land documents.
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HIGHLIGHT
e The land Registry regularly infroduces enhancements to the Integrated Registration Information System (IRIS) as part
of our on-going efforts to improve our registration and search services to customers.
e We have put in place measures to ensure the security of our IT systems and data and to raise staff awareness
in IT security.
*  We are developing a new system to improve our online search services.
(@) Service Enhancement to IRIS
Maijor enhancements implemented in 2009 include:
®  the maximum number of orders per fransaction for non-subscriber users has been increased from 5 to 30;
®  on enhanced version of the e-Memorial Form has been launched fo provide extended functions to improve
its usage; and
J a backup payment gateway has been implemented which can take over the online payment function by

credit card within 15 minutes in case of malfunctions of the main payment gateway.

(b) IT Security
The land Regisiry endeavours to maintain the security of its computer systems and data by taking the following

measures in 2009/10:

e circulated departmental policy and guidelines on IT security periodically fo reinforce staff understanding on

the importance of information security and personal data profection;

®  conducted refresher course annually to ensure that all staff stay vigilant in preserving IT security;

*  stayed funed fo the latest technological development on IT security in the market and adopted appropriate

measures fo protect our systems and data;

e conducted regular security audits on our IT systems and implemented improvement measures arising from

audit recommendations fo ensure a proper protection of the [T systems;

. installed a website filtering tool to prevent visits to websites that may cause T security risks or may lead tfo

violation of the land Registry’s IT security policy and guidelines; and

o put up a privacy policy on security protection of personal data on the land Registry's website.
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() Future Plan
()  New Search System
The land Regisiry will launch a new computer system in the third quarter of 2010 with enhanced technical
design for ensuring a more stable and reliable search services to customers. The new system will be
separated from the internal systems to minimise the impact of scheduled maintenance and upgrading work

of internal systems on the provision of public search service o customers.

Service hours of the new system will be extended from the present 16 hours to 20 hours a day, i.e. from

7:30 am. to 3:30 am. (with last order cutoff at 2:30 a.m.) the next day.

(i)  IT Support for Title Registration
A new [T system will be developed fo provide full
support for the future operation of fifle registration.
We will work on the design of the new system to

align with the legislative process fo amend the [TO.
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Financial Management

HIGHLIGHT

. Due fo a revival in the property market since June 2009, the land Registry achieved a profit and fotal

comprehensive income of $149.7 million.
) For 2009/10, the rate of return on fixed assets was 38.5%.

®  Fees related to opening an IRIS Online Services subscriber account further reduced by 50%.

(a) Financial Objectives
In accordance with the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430), the land Registry pursues clearly defined financial

objectives as follows:

®  meefing expenses incurred in the provision of services to the public and Govemnment departments out of the

income of the trading fund, taking one year with another; and

e ochieving a reasonable retun, as determined by the Financial Secrefary, on the average net fixed assefs [ANFA|

employed.

(b) Actual Performance
When compared with 2008/09, the Land Registry’s overall revenue increased by $679 million (up 15.2%) mainly
due fo revival in the property market. Operating expenses decreased by $3.0 million (down 0.9%) mainly due to

lower depreciation charges.

() Fee Reduction

To further promote the use of e-services, the land Registry substantially reduced the application fee for opening
an IRIS Online Services subscriber account from $2,000 to $1,000 with effect from 1 October 2009.

At the same time, the minimum deposit for setflement of search and copying services ordered in a subscriber
account was reduced from $1,000 to $500 or an amount equivalent to two months” estimated transaction volume

of the account, whichever is the higher.

(d) Forecast
The land Regisiry will confinue to exercise strict control on costs. Additional expenditure is expected to be

incurred for fifle registration.

Revenue and rate of retum on fixed assefs will depend mainly on transaction volumes in the property market. This

in tumn depends on wider economic factors and the frend of morigage interest rates.

Nevertheless, we expect fo be able to achieve the retum, as defermined by the Financial Secrefary, on ANFA

employed in the coming financial year.
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B3 iEHE
Report of the Director of Audit
to the | egislative Council

Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the land Registry Trading Fund set out on pages 76 fo 105, which
comprise the sfatement of financial position as at 31 March 2010,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund’s responsibility for
the financial statements

The General Manager, land Registry Trading Fund is responsible for
the preparation and the frue and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds
Ordinance (Cap. 430) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the frue
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

My responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance
with section 7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit
Commission audifing standards. Those standards require that | comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as fo whether the financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
enfity’s preparation and frue and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumsfances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluafing the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
General Manager, land Registry Trading Fund, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial sfatements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the land Regisiry Trading Fund as at 31 March
2010 and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

[CHAN Barkeung)
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

15 September 2010
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rRAMEEEAA Land Registry Trading Fund
A& £ & Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE_T-ZF=-A=+—HLFE for the year ended 31 March 2010
(A FTRR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P 5

Note 2010 2009
BEE Turnover 3 505,761 425,511
EIER AR Operating cosfs 4 (337,772) (340,780)
EERF Profit from operations 167,989 84,731
Eqth Yz A Other income 5 9,858 22,183
BB AR T Profit before tax 177,847 106,914
I Taxation 6 (28,138) (13,398)
BRRERE Profit and total comprehensive

R HEI S income for the year 149,709 93,516

BEE&EERRE Rate of return on fixed assets Ve 38.5% 18.8%

FBIEI0SEMME R B AM B REN — 7 -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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TRBAMELEEAA
o X S A

Land Registry Trading Fund

Statement of Financial Position

R-_ZE—ZFTF=HA=+—H as at 31 March 2010

(AE®ETITERR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B &£
Note 2010 2009
REEE Non-current assets
ME - R REM Property, plant and equipment 8 302,754 313,156
| EE Infangible assets Q 56,264 53,771
SEHMMNE S5 Held-fo-maturity securities 10 100,533 100,082
459,551 467009
REEE Current assets
FEWIE R R TE# KB Debtors and prepayments 14,270 16,272
BEEATZEBIRK Amounts due from related parties 8,804 9773
FE R T 5K Tax recoverable - 6,460
RITTFE K Bank deposifs 307,000 471,000
Re RIRITER Cash and bank balances 221,414 19,169
551,488 522,674
RBERE Current liabilities
iR T WA Deferred revenue 11 13,773 10,219
C el A Customers’ deposits 12 25,756 25,585
JE A IR 3R Creditors 11,112 7560
BEEALTZENIRFK Amounts due to related parties 1,821 2,572
BERHN G Provision for employee benefits 4,609 3,342
JREA5F B 3K Tax payable 14,216 —
71,287 497278
RBEEEH Net current assets 480,201 473,396
MBEREREDEMR  Total assets less current liabilities 939,752 940,405

FBIEI0SEMME R B AM B RERN — 7 -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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rRAMEEEAA Land Registry Trading Fund
HBRR L) Statement of Financial Position (continued)
Pt &E
Note 2010 2009
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
IEER 1A Deferred tax 13 10,711 11,373
BERNEEG Provision for employee benefits 74,938 77879
EEFH NET ASSETS 854,103 851,153
BEXRGEHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
HEESER Trading fund capial 14 118,300 118,300
REBAEF Retained earnings 15 660,949 586,094
BELN Proposed dividend 16 74,854 146,759
854,103 851,153
BHERXES L Ms Olivia NIP, J.P.
T EME R & land Registrar and General Manager
THEMEEEESAKRE land Registry Trading Fund
—E-TFAATRA 15 September 2010

FBIEI0SEMMEN B AM B RN~ -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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rRAMEEEAA Land Registry Trading Fund
HEZY L Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_T-TF=A=+—HLEFE for the year ended 31 March 2010
(AEBBFITERT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2010 2009
EEMHEER Balance at beginning of year 851,153 1,045,643

Total comprehensive income

FEHEI>ERE for the year 149,709 93,516
FRNBEATALF Dividend paid during the year (146,759) (288,000)
EELRBNEG Balance at end of year 854,103 851,153

FBIEI0SEMME R B AMBRERN —F 7 -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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B MELEAA
BARE A

Land Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

HE-2-TH=A=+—ALEE
(A FTEET)

for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Pt &£
Note 2010 2009

EEEHMIREARE  Cash flows from operating activities

EBIERF Profit from operations 167,989 84,731
FrERHEH Depreciation and amortisation 33,362 42,818
IR W AR Increase/(Decrease) in deferred

#m,Crl ) revenue 3,554 (2,195)
J& -1 R 5% N A R 5&

AT 2 ERIRF A Increase/(Decrease) in creditors and

#in, CRd) amounts due fo related parties 2,674 (3,172)
EERAEED (Decrease)/Increase in provision for

CRL ),/ 48 hn employee benefits (1,674) 5017
BEPEeeE N Increase in customers’ deposits 171 1,129
JE U5 bR R % A R

AT 2 FE IR Decrease/(Increase) in debtors and

B (5 n) amounts due from related parties 432 (1,572)
BRI B Profits tax paid (8,124) (40,621)
ZEFEHMHRERA

T8 Net cash from operating activities 198,384 86,135
REEHWIREARE  Cash flows from investing activities
RITERER D (%R Decrease in bank deposits (other than

WEBRIN cash equivalents) 314,000 12,000
RNEBTEE Purchase of fixed assefs (25,326) (16,867)
2 UHF 8 Interest received 11,946 23996
BEFEEPRERA

g ] Net cash from investing activities 300,620 19129

FBIEI0SEMME R B AMBRERN —2 7 -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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rRAMEEEAA Land Registry Trading Fund
WA GE L) Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Pt 3£
Note 2010 2009
MEEEHMIRERARE  Cash flows from financing activities
EATALF Dividend paid (146,759) (288,000)
RMEEAMRESKH
BE Net cash used in financing activities (146,759) (288,000)
H&RZERIFLHEI,~ Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
(B iF8 cash equivalents 352,245 (182,742)
EFPNRE RER Cash and cash equivalents at
R&e beginning of year 19,169 2019M
EFERWMIAERER  Cash and cash equivalents at
He end of year 17 371,414 19169

FBIEI0SEMME N B AM B RERN — 27 -

The notes on pages 83 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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BB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRZATAIN AEEEY (Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless
IANABEF T ARREN) otherwise stated)
1. 4G General

VABE-—NAN=ZFNAZTHRBE(ZEE S KRHIN(EL308)£E3 4&61'71<L353%E§%’E Ah=%F
NA—BRITaAMELEES - T HIMEREFHIN A EHO L ECMARIT L MFAMEE - I
MEFPRHEEM T HECMMNEE T EEMREMEBRE - 1IN THEFMETEEREXFIREE
HIERES ©

The land Registry Trading Fund (“IRTF") was established on 1 August 1993 under the legislative Council
Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.
430). The land Registry administers a land registration system by maintaining an up-o-date land Regisfer and
provides its customers with services and facilities for searches of the land Register and relafed land records. The
land Registry also processes applications for the incorporation of owners.

2. EEEBE Significant accounting policies
21 HEERAEH Statement of compliance

$Hﬂ%$ﬁi€%%§ﬁﬁ%§%’2\3 SHRALMBEEANEBMBEREEN(MARLRE  ETREE
SHEMAGRMNMBEEANENZTEMBREED BESHENRZBE)RYE - L1EME
ME%%%%WE‘JIE%EJrEﬁ%%EQDTo

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), a collective ferm
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the LRTF is set out below.

22 HREVMBHEROEH Basis of preparation of the financial statements
R B mEORBEERIGUREKANETE -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

BENABRVBRELENNVBRRAFTELIHAMRLEESERBEL A B RER - %
SHE  HARBREFESHABENER  UREEEBBEMBRARL HH2WKRE - ZEMHE
EHEBNER HENEERIEMEEBEBRA TN RRBASEENERMGIF]  MEL2H HMRKE
BRAK2E  AeRAZSHARBEREA/HEGABEELAGEMNIRMEMER - AFIERIEHE
EREERMTR -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the management of LRTF to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assefs, liabiliies, income and expenses. The esfimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

2009 - 2010 Annual Report - The Land Registry Trading Fund Hong Kong 8 3
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HHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

84

FTESHBRE Significant accounting policies (continved)

23

HZEGFAREMERBENREEFERERT - METSMEHREFTEEFNEIY  EFNEHH
NEBERBRER WEFSFEEFRRKNEHH  MEEEFRRRN ST HABERBRE -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

THEMELEESAEEREA BRI EL NI REIMBROSHE - BERERRELHORE
FEREMERAGIBREPAFENTHMAEER  ETRUBEREANRR  EREEMAGBNOIR
& B AR EFERIBER -

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the LRTF's accounting policies.
There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

ERIEERSHEE Financial assets and financial liabilities
2.3.1 YIIRHER Initial recognifion

THEMEEEESEREVRGEENIFAENENSEREELRSRABIIFENIIDE:
EHFAEREEIESR SEMRNESREGLESRAE -

The IRTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into different categories at inception,
depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The

categories are: loans and receivables, heldto-maturity securities and other financial liabilities.

CRHEENSREBBERVEATEHNE AFTEBRTHAENKRE Mt EHRIEREKIRNK -
FREfMRNESLEbeRBENS  MNLARESREEXEL SR ABMERSIHK

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, which normally equals to
the fransaction prices, plus fransaction costs for loans and receivables, heldto-maturity securities and
other financial liabilities that are directly atfributable o the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of

the financial liability.

THEMEEEESEXNSBRSR TANGNEF S ZAERREHeREERERAE -
ERBELREETS LAERERKBNEREE - MIRXWAAR -

The LRTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party fo the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are

accounted for at settlement date.

EETIAMELEERS —TTNE_T-TFFR
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BB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

2. XEETBRE) Significant accounting policies (continued)
232 n#A Categorisation

2.3.2.) B /I8 & FE U IR X loans and receivables

ERFELRERIERSEABEEL AN BERSSE  BEEFRTHLRERENIEL
TERMEE MIMEMEZEEZSNEBTHIBHAERSAE - WHEBSREBUIRR -
BRBALTZREIRR RIOTGFEALRS RRITER -

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an acfive market and which the LRTF has no infention of trading. This
category includes debtors, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and

bank balances.

BRI AR R B E RN X R R A EN R IR EE R B) 5 ik (T
2.34)

loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less

impairment losses, if any (note 2.3.4).

2322/ E MM E S Heldto-maturity securities
RERMNESSEABREXANEETR B LBEERHA - A L FEfEEE
EeAREBRANMEN  AIUKEEZIMNENTESREE BT AEHERARER
IRRERNSREERBRID -

Heldo-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity which the RTF has the posifive infenfion and ability to hold to maturity,

other than those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

FrEHmeE KA B RN ORI EHKANEMREARERE(0A) 5k (K £2.3.4) -

Heldo-maturity securifies are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less

impairment losses, if any (note 2.3.4).

2323 EMmEmAasi Other financial liabilities

Hte@MBEXRAERN R ZBEHKAEIK -

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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HBHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

86

FTESHBRE) Significant accounting policies (continved)
233 FEiEER Derecognition

EReREELNDESRENGOERERT HCEEFZXREEREB R AR D H
MWEBR ZEREESWAHER -

A financial assef is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership have been transferred.

EANERANETBRER BUHSIIMNE  ZeMARESWEHER

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,

cancelled or expires.

TRl E ERE Impairment of financial assets

B RE R ERIRR H:KEHH/%E’\J %EI’J'PEE@AEtTI#&i,Hﬁ ERBELATMG - AREE
CEXEBEMNBEERE BEHRBELRBRERALBEHNESEFERERE  BHESMX
aZﬁFWWEE@&i?&EJ?$E’J ERMEAFTR D AAEEERRRAERENREZHNER -
EEHEBRSERAER MERRESERRE YRERERIANEERRLENEHHERA
AlZREEREEEHRERAME -

The carrying amount of loans and receivables and heldfo-maturity securities are reviewed af the end
of each reporting period to defermine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
impairment evidence exisfs, a loss is recognised in the stafement of comprehensive income as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effecfive inferest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of such
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring affer the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the sftatement of

comprehensive income.

BELIAMELEERS —TTNE_T-TFFR
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

2. XEETBRE) Significant accounting policies (continued)
24 YE- -RERBEM Property, plant and equipment

R—AN=ZFNA-—ABRBIHEMRLEESNYE RERSFH RTOORAIRILEZGHE
B L HEMEEEESHRBRTMINBEAR - AN=ZFNA-BEFBEODE R
R HRBABAR -

Property, plant and equipment appropriated fo the LRTF on 1 August 1993 were measured inifially at
deemed cost equal to the value contained in the legislafive Council Resolution for the sefting up of the
LRTF. Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised af their costs of

acquisition.

AT - RERSEMARKENR R E RERREBESIR (HEE2.6)
- R-AN=FN\A-HARBIHIMELELSNERYE R
- REBELAFVEREEMSEN  KEAEEE  UREMSIM -

The following property, plant and equipment are sfated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses (note 2.6):
—  buildings held for own use appropriated to the IRTF on 1 August 1993; and

—  plont and equipment, including computer equipment, fumiture and fittings and other equipment.

NERKRBYWE RBREMOGEFAIERAFHUNERZEBENBRATFGAENKANE  FTEHZE
s

e E 304
— REREM 5%

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
—  Buildings 30 vyears

—  Plant and equipment 5 vyears

R—AN=FN\A-BRBLHEAMEEELASN T (R HWEMBREERS 2MEME) RS
FIMEEE -

The land on which the LRTF's buildings are situated as appropriated fo the LRTF on 1 August 1993 is

regarded as a non-depreciafing asset.

HEWE  RELRBEVOBENLEMSFEEEENRAEZHNEEIRTE  YELEARE
U s R NHER -

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are defermined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assef, and are recognised in the

statement of comprehensive income at the date of disposal.
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HBHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

88

FTESHBRE) Significant accounting policies (continved)
25 EHREE Intangible assets

2.6

2.7

2.8

BEVEAECRBANEREGRRBRECEMENER TG REARBERAE - EEMANEREAERM
ERIfT M EMELEESERNERMNEETKAETE FRNAREREWNESNML - &
AMERBREZIBEMMKHER - BPEERKAEMR Rt 88 MEADRE BB IR (HE2.6) -

Infangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised development costs  of
computer software programmes. Expenditure on development of computer software programmes s
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the LRTF has sufficient resources and the infention
to complefe development. The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials. Infangible
assefs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.6).

BEREENEHEGEHAIERFHOF) NEREIAZHE LGSR

Amortisation of intangible assefs is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straightline
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

BE&ENRE Impairment of fixed assets

BEEE  BEVE RELSHV UREVEENKOEESERERNERANG  UEEES
HIRBETR - EERETFEMEENRAESNAEATKREHE  IEEREBEEZERERA
R BENAROHBESEAFERHEXNAREREMETNRSE -

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and equipment and infangible assefs, are
reviewed atf the end of each reporting period fo identify any indication of impairment. If there is an indication
of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the stafement of comprehensive income whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

¥RAH& Cash equivalents

FRECHBREXLERERBESORE  ZFHBERBAKERMA TEMBIMEA - XEERATHE
BREMBENRS  MEBEZBORMREBEM -

Cash equivalents are shortterm highly liquid investiments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity af
acquisition.

EESER Employee benefits

PoRFREEERTEAMRBOFEFNEA TALKBRAFAX -EERERX  BEEBEEH
THEBEF@EEFRERMETEENERESET FERINMFESEREN & LivEMEZE
Eex# TERHEBRENFERIBA/FZ -

Salaries and annual leave are accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by the sfaff. Staff oncosts including pensions, housing and non-monetary benefits
provided fo the staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Hong Kong
SAR Government”) are charged fo the LRTF and charged as expenditure in the vyear in which the

associated services are rendered.
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

2. XEEFBRAE) Significant accounting policies (continued)
29 Fi"R#H Income tax

() BEERItpEMEEEESABIKBRBEINEINRE)NREAFENBENEHR - &
FERAXHERAARELEEHBREEMABENES) -

The Government requires the [RTF to pay a notional profits tax calculated on the basis of the
provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112). Tax expense for the year comprises current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(i) AHRERAFEHERRFPARBEHERACENNEREA RN XRAENIEFENHIE
YBFEAEFERNTENEMFHE -

Current fax is the expected fax payable on the taxable income for the year, using fax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment fo tax payable in

respect of previous years.

(i) EERBREENBESAMANERFENEELAERAKABZANEZR MoORNELN
AMBRRERNNECER - EXERBAEEDAIRRERNBEBERRTBERRMEL

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assefs also arise from unused tax losses and unused fax

credits.
FTEELERBEEMN AR EERRENFUAIRBEMNELEHIEBEEE Y THER -

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets fo the extent that it is probable that future

taxable profits will be available against which the assets can be ufilised, are recognised.

BEERENERAEEREZEELBENRAEZAHURDREZEN T X RERSHER
FEAERABERARNREAE - BERBAEERBBIERE -

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
sefflement of the carrying amount of the assefs and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted af the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are not discounted.

EEHBEEENRACHRASARSHAERAENEN  YRHIBAERHNERTE AN IA
BEREMABARBNENEERBEE TR - RABRNEEREEESNARABRERER
Y FE R & A B B [E] -

The carrying amount of a deferred tax assef is reviewed af the end of each reporting period and is
reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient faxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the exfent that it

becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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HBHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Q0

FTESHBRE) Significant accounting policies (continved)
2.10 WABIEE Revenue recognition

2.1

2.12

EERANERFERBEER - MEWARBERNZEAR T AER -

Revenue is recognised as services are provided. Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

BERENZEZRAECRHEEN SR BENBERAE UERESEEHHRMN B W AR LT
& BRMEXZHRAS SR T AERARMEGERNEEHME) ANBE RS WX - TEKZ
CREENCREENREFEMEANYERE -t HRMELEELSEFETERIER @28
TRITANMAEGHNBRIUGFRSRE  ETSREARNEEERE - ERNENAERESYD
EFXNIRBHNAEER(ERASERNE A RBRANED)  KHRARAEEMEEIITE -

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the LRTF estimates
cash flows considering all contractual tferms of the financial instruments but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an

infegral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

IERE Foreign currency translation

AEFINERD RRXGEANEXRER/ET - UINEHENEREEREBE  HRBEHER
AMERBERET - HNEREFELNEL RS REBE  SE2HKRSRTER -

Foreign currency fransactions during the year are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rafes
rling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

AAEAL Related parties

THEMEEEEASRBB(EERESKIDKY  YEBRNETNB LG EM - FA - LT
REEESHERAREBTEEEWEALTETRS - GEALEBRBEARERFEBLEPM - 28
HEE UERXBAMEHREEZENMBETHE -

The LRTF is a separate accounting enfity within the Government established under the Trading Funds
Ordinance. During the vyear, the IRTF has enfered info transactions with various related parties, including
govemnment bureaux and departments, trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled  or

significantly influenced by the Hong Kong SAR Government, in the ordinary course of its business.
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

2. XEETBRE) Significant accounting policies (continued)
213 HEIREETIEEMBRE Impact of new and revised HKFRSs
FAMHE

BAREGHMAGRNTZHEEAGHPANEMNMTREEITNETBH B REEL - ERARARB
BRAEZBOFENSIBER  LARESEHERMAEANE - AT ERRABTEGEREIR
(BEDIFBEHRERNEHR ] AR BREROER T AIELEE -

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs which are effective for the current
accounting period. There have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial
statfements for the years presented as a result of these developments. However, as a result of adopting
HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements, there are changes fo the presentation of these

financial statements.

BT ENFIFEEIDSIAZARER  YBRTUNE—BRRIMPDEERREBRAEEER
WARSTH A MELCERESEENE—RRER -ZBALEANIEIEEABERINAIT A
MERINIER © R E XA E XIZE Cash Flow Statement” 28 & “Statement of Cash Flows” °

HKAS 1 (Revised) infroduces the sfatement of comprehensive income and presents all items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single sfatement, or in two linked sfatements. The LRTF has elected tfo
present one sfafement. The standard also introduces tile changes from “Balance Sheet” to “Statement of

Financial Position” and from “Cash Flow Statement” to “Statement of Cash Flows".
TR S E A S WL B RN A2 5T HA 18 K A AL A 372 BY (Y 3£ 22) -

The LRTF has not applied any new sfandard that is not yet effective for the current accounting period

(note 22).
3. EE®E Turnover

2010 2009
PEIE SRR Registration of documents 266,858 223,643
=1 Search 92,068 73,351
AR Copying 83,220 68,114
¥EWME Reports on fitle 47,583 47970
ESERVAE 7 Owners incorporation 10,175 7110
H A Others 5,857 5,323
pok] Total 505,761 425,511
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Operating costs

Staff costs

General operating expenses
Computer service charges

Rental and management charges
Central administrative overheads

Depreciation and amortisation

Audit fees

Totdl

Other income

Bank deposits interest

Held-to-maturity securities interest

Net exchange gain/(loss)

Total

—EEhE-TTFEY

&

2010 2009
237,567 234,563
18,959 20996
29,655 23,942
15,404 15,471
2,362 2,520
33,362 42,818
463 470
337,772 340,780
2010 2009
4,413 17313
5,273 5,267
172 (397)
9,858 22,183
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

6. PHIE Taxation

() MNEERDZRAMFHORBLOL:

Taxation charged to the statement of comprehensive income represents:

2010 2009
REATL IR Current tax
REZBZNFHA Provision for notional profits fax
B for the year 28,800 17913
EFETR IR Deferred tax
LRETENEER Origination and reversal of
# [l temporary differences (662) (3,607)
T8 R 58 S B )R Reduction in opening deferred taxes
HE 7 TE B R resulting from reduction in tax rate - (908)
BEZHEE Total tax expense 28,138 13,398
(i) BMEXHEIARERBNZERAREIAENORIERE 2 HIiK:
Reconciliation between fax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rafes:
2010 2009
Fx B AT & Profit before tax 177,847 106914
BREBMEHEI6.5%
—ETNFER Tax af Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5%) st E B 18 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 29,345 17,641
METHEEBYIELN  Reduction in opening deferred taxes
T8 8 R resulting from reduction in tax rate - (908)
FEFE R M A BT IR
za Tax effect of nontaxable revenue (1,207) (3,335)
BRHBIEXH Actual tax expense 28,138 13,398
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HBHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements

7. EEEDHRE Rate of return on fixed assets

BEEELNREZNA2EA RS (TEFENEWRAMMEZL)GEABEEEFYFEMSHALE -
TEERRDE RE SMREBEVEE BRUIHAMRLEERSTAERMRARNRENSFEE
BEDHEBILHER -

The rate of refurn on fixed assefs is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding interest income and
inferest expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assefs include
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The LRTF is expected to meet a farget rate of return on

fixed assets of 8.3% per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

8. PX RER=BH Property, plant and equipment
T B
RESY ERaEM RERRE @t
Equipment,
land and ~ Computer  Furniture
Buildings  Equipment and Fittings Total
%3 Cost
E-ZZ\FWA-A At 1 April 2008 350,000 112975 14,758 477733
NE Additions - 1,180 1,795 2975
EZZTHAFE=A=T—H At 31 March 2009 350,000 114,155 16,553 480,708
EZZTHhENA-A At T April 2009 350,000 114,155 16,553 480,708
NE Additions - 8,642 2922 11,564
E-_B-TE=A=1+-H At 31 March 2010 350,000 122,797 19,475 492,272
R E Accumulated depreciation
E-ZZ\FWA-A A1 April 2008 56,482 73,284 10956 140,722
FEBH Charge for the year 3,851 21,100 1,879 26,830
EZZTHAFE=A=T—H At 31 March 2009 60,333 94,384 12,835 167,552
E_ZTNFNA—A At T April 2009 60,333 94,384 12,835 167,552
FEBH Charge for the year 3,851 15972 2,143 21,966
E-_B-TE=A=1+-H At 31 March 2010 64,184 110,356 14978 189,518
IR % {E Net book value
E-¥-F¥£=fA=+-H At 31 March 2010 285,816 12,441 4,497 302,754
EZZETHhE=R=1—H At 31 March 2009 289,667 19771 3,718 313,156

Q4 spiwammesss —TENE-T-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Intangible assets

ERRGERRERAFAERE

Computer software licences and

system development costs

2010 2009
Cost
At beginning of year 153,898 140,006
Additions 13,889 13,892
At end of year 167,787 153,898
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year 100,127 84,139
Charge for the year 11,396 15988
At end of year 111,523 100,127
Net book value
At end of year 56,264 53,771
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HBHB AN Notes to the Financial Statements
10. #HEHHIYESH Held-to-maturity securities
2010 2009
&7 5 K AR R At amortised cost
7 Listed:
— B — in Hong Kong 55,209 55,057
— B ASD — outside Hong Kong 15,042 14,991
70,251 70,048
JEET Unlisted 30,282 30,034
Pk Total 100,533 100,082
. EEUN Deferred revenue

HEEHEDREANEME  RBAXNOITEERAREMREKE -

This represents oufstanding search fickets and subscription fees/other service charges received in advance of

which services have not yet been rendered.

2010 2009
aftE Search fickets 369 369

B A E A RS Subscription fees/other
W& service charges 13,404 9,850
HEERNER Balance at end of year 13,773 10,219

12. EFRE: Customers’ deposits

2010 2009
WERBEERAFP Online services subscribers 24,772 24,601
& &R Government departments 984 984
EELRWELR Balance at end of year 25,756 25,585

Q6 smmiwamEsEE: —TEAS-T-TEER
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements
13. IBEPIE Deferred tax

EMBARRARABRNELEHAIERI RFANZEFSH O :

Maijor components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

SHAERTEREH
MITERBE HHTTER BE

Depreciation allowances

in excess of the related Other
depreciation and temporary
amortisation differences Total
E-ZZEN\FMA—BNES Balance af 1 April 2008 15951 (63) 15,888
REERERA Credited to statement of comprehensive
A income (4,500) ©) (4,515)
E-ZETNF=ZA=+—HHN%EH  Balance aof 31 March 2009 11,445 72) 11,373
E-ZETNFENA-BHER Balance at 1 April 2009 11,445 (72) 11,373
RERRERA Credited to statement of comprehensive
A income (656) (6) (662)
H-E-BE=A=+-BM%E  Bdlance at 31 March 2010 10,789 (78) 10,711
4. ZEESEX Trading fund capital
AR H T EMEEEESTHNRE -
This represents the Government's investment in the [RTF.
15. REBEF Retained earnings
2010 2009
T F Y] H) 45 85 Balance at beginning of year 586,094 639,337
FEATENKE Total comprehensive income for the year 149,709 93,516
BEAF Proposed dividend (74,854) (146,759)
EERBEER Balance at end of year 660,949 586,094
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16.

17.

18.

@8

BEEEALF Proposed dividend

REREEC T¢ A=+ —HALFERELAN485ABT(CZTZENFRE RIEL0/598T) B
NS EH&Z:@E’JSOA “ETNFERSMABER/UETT)

A dividend of $74.854 million (2009: $146.759 million), based on 50% of the fotal comprehensive income (2009:
plus an additional amount of $100 million), is proposed for the year ended 31 March 2010.

ReERERERSE Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009

Re MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 221,414 19169
RITIF K Bank deposits

(ERBE D) (cash equivalents porfion) 150,000 -
EERNEER Cash and cash equivalents

ZRARE at end of year 371,414 19,169
FRAEANLRS Related party transactions

RTEAMBERENEMBOBENEEREALRSIN FRNEFHEEATETHNEMERZSHl

N

() AEMEEEATRERHORESE LW XHEMR EXN T HERME s UREMH LT
BEIRAMERERS - SLERBATEFRNBIWAZESBOBTL(ZEZNFERRS00ET) &
HOEEMFINEETEET -

iy BEEATAARRENREELEBE@EEN  HAMF FRITBANEANRS - ARTELERS
FHEMNAREZE2008TT(ZETNFER2I00BTT) @2 BEHELMF4MNEERRIET -

iy MEESEATBANETEEGRREETIR SLEENAKARIOET(ZEZENFER2008ET)

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related party transactions for

the year are summarised as follows:

()  Services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of land registers and
records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title. The total revenue derived from these services
amounted to $88 million (2009: $85 million). This amount is included in turnover under note 3.

(i) Services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation, central administration
and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services amounted to $25 million (2009: $21 million). This
amount is included in operating cosfs under note 4.

(i) Acquisition of fixed assefs from related parties included fitting out projects. The fofal cost of these assefs

amounted to $3 million (2009: $2 million).

AREZ R A B E ARt HEFE’JWEW‘ii“/\iﬂlﬁkﬁ’ﬂﬂl%ﬁ%ﬁmkﬁ E-REHE  BRRKREHERD
FHRE  WEMRZ K ERARMEEBAEALORSE  AEREHN+EMAFTE -

Charging for services rendered fo or received from related parties was on the same basis, that is, at the rafes
payable by the general public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost recovery

basis for services which were available only to related parties.

EETIAMELERERS —TTNE_T-TFFR
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

19. £RtEGERE Financial risk management

() H‘EBE Investment policy

THEMREEERSUBERTNIARRECREECREFESARITER - RENARER
RRBMEEBLEBRBRE TEREERMBELNES  YRNAEMARRM - RENER
EBETHBEERFRBRNIBEEFIRASZNBTEFETHRERL - — KK RENEBESGH
=Hm e

The LRTF maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including debt securities and
bank deposifs. Investment decisions are made according fo the guidelines from the Secrefary for Financial
Services and the Treasury, Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations. Invested debt
securifies are issued by the Hong Kong SAR Government or quasi-government bodies in Hong Kong with

sound credit rafings and are in general held to maturity.
(i) EERRE Credit risk
EERBRESRIAN —FTBETREBETEEMASSIR S FTRIUBELNER -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause

the other party to incur a financial loss.

THEMELEESYBEERREAZEETNER ERSHERBNESEERRCRFAEFA
MEMERRKEBREAEEEREDWT:

The RTF does not have significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
end of the reporting period without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements is

shown below:

2010 2009
FEHIMNES Held-to-maturity securities 100,533 100,082
JE WS IR 53R Debtors 1,126 10,092
EBAEATZEWIRZK  Amounts due from related parties 8,804 Q773
RITIF K Bank deposits 307,000 471,000
RITEE AR Bank balances 221,371 19123
Pk Total 648,834 610,070

SEEREEERR  FAETRFEROFEREBHRFERT -

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licenced banks in Hong Kong.
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19. £ptEGEEIEE) Financial risk management (continved)

(iii)

100

THEMELEESMNEERR  T2RORNRBRIEALEBESNRE - THHEMELEESF]
BRBEE ITHEERAAENEERR -

The LRTF's credit risk is primarily afributable to debtors and investments in debt securifies. The LRTF has a

credit policy in place and the exposure fo these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing boasis.
BREWIRS B EIREBELAPASNEZES -
In respect of debtors, deposits are required from our online services subscribers.

BHEFRENE REEERAIEEEBISRECINEBRES - ERSHLERE - BHE
FRENGEEEZURBSRELANTRTHREZ ST AT

For investments in debt securities, only those classified under the investment grade by Moody's or Standard
& Poor's are considered. At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investments in debt

securities, analysed by the lower of ratings designated by Moody's or Standard & Poor’s, is as follows:

2010 2009
REHMNZS Held-to-maturity securities by credit
(REERAEET) rating
Aal E Aa3/AA+ZE AA- Aal to Aa3/AA+ to AA- 100,533 100,082
mENE & B Liquidity risk

nPEcRREX - ERSENBETESRAGHBNEENER -

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financia

liabilities.

REBE(EEESKRD) tHEAMRELEESARREEASEE  BRARRSNREHNRE KA
ERREBLEBRBRILE - tHAMEEEECHNBRREEHERIBLEHANRDESTE
BREAESEHNNREHERS UWTAaREHNARDESFE TtHEMEEEESNRPESMN
iR REEHNRSECERER -

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the LRTF is responsible for its own cash management, including short-
term and longterm investment of cash surpluses, subject to approval by the Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury. The LRTF's policy is to regularly monifor current and expected liquidity requirements fo
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term. As the LRTF has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.

EETiIAMELERERS —TTNE_TTFFR
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19. £ptEGEEIEE) Financial risk management (continued)
(iv) FUSEE & Interest rate risk

FERERERTSHNEEDMIRERGAR - WEARTE 55 AL TENEERERASHE
PR -

Interest rafe risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rafes. This can be further

classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

RPEMNEEBREESRTANATFESEAT SN XEHMEBNEAR AR LHIMELEESN
REHRMNESRRTFA/EESRITE  EMBNELA  GLEMTANAFEEETE -
AW HRAEREZEHRNBESRBITFEROREHEKNAEY T mENENEHTST EHBR
EEETHEMREEESOHBN MR -

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market inferest rates. Since the LRTF's heldto-maturity securities and bank deposits bear inferest
at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as all the held-to-
maturity securifies and bank deposits are stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not

affect their carrying amounts and the LRTF's profit and reserves.

ReRENFERESRTANAKREARESEAT SN XL MKBNER - TibFMEEEER
SEAAHEANRCRENERR  ASEFANIZSHMTANTZEESRHITA -

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market inferest rates. The LRTF is not exposed fo material cash flow interest rate risk because

it has no major financial instruments bearing inferest af a floating rate.
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19. £ptEGEEIEE) Financial risk management (continved)

TEAISHEAEERSHEREMNIEEE  LRIEH MR L RELEE @ oM

The table below sets out the LRTF's exposure fo interest rate risk, based on the major interest bearing assets

stated at carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period and categorised by maturity dates.

@i3MEA ‘ilE BilsE

AT (EF@EIE (EFEBSE EFBBIE ok
More than More than More than
3 months but 1 year but 5 years but

3 months not more than not more than  not more than

or less 1 year 5 years 10 years Total
2010
BEHR Held4o-maturity
& H securifies - - 100,533 - 100,533
BITER Bank deposits 257,000 50,000 - - 307,000
Pk Total 257,000 50,000 100,533 - 407,533
2009
BEHR Held-o-maturity
5 5 securities - - 45026 55,056 100,082
BITER Bank deposits 291,000 180,000 - - 471,000
aE Total 291,000 180,000 45026 55,056 571,082
(v) E¥EMR Currency risk

ERRERESRIANAFELRARREREGEAEXZEFH MK BHHER -

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
THAMRELEEESHN —REEXZIEABELREM  AM TR EKER -

The LRTF's normal business fransactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and therefore do not give

rise fo currency risk.

102 =siwsmmesss —E2hz—2-TE5H
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BB AL Notes to the Financial Statements

19. SRERERE) Financial risk management (continued)
ERUETREMNIRE BB TR THE  tHEMEEEENEEARER -

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing tfo the linked exchange rate of the

Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the LRTF has a very low level of currency risk.

ERENERD  UETRAUNEREELABIONET(CETAFERIOUET) - AN TR
BEMMBSRABEHUNAETRANM

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets totaling $101 million (2009: $101 million) were
denominated in United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial licbilities were

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
(vi) AFE Fair values

EEBRTSEENSRIANATERREBENERANTSRERT - MIEXSETHEE -
B LA 3R (8 5 5 A 15 335 A 0 65 B 3R D 0 T BB A4 L A A

The fair value of financial instruments traded in octive markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of the reporting period. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using
present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market condiions existing at the end of

the reporfing period.
REHRRNISEREHERBNATFEDT

The fair values of held+to-maturity securities at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

R E & AFE
Carrying value Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009

BFEHMWNES Held-o-maturity securities 100,533 100,082 109,593 107421

AEREMER TAHUEERAFERRIBAE AN RERBRRNEATIK

All other financial instruments are stated in the statfement of financial position af amounts equal to or nof

materially different from their fair values.
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20. EXXKiE Capital commitments

E-T-ZFF=-A=1+—"8 1taEMEELEESETINHRIAMFEHRROERALE:

At 31 March 2010, the IRTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial statements, as

follows:
2010 2009
BHE R BRL Authorised and contracted for 51,234 8,019
BHLEERTL Authorised but not yet contracted for 167,507 229510
LR Totdl 218,741 237,529
2. EEBRLORE Operating lease commitments

E-T-TF=A=+—R RETUHEN T RZENEEHOERARNOKERNSHREFRBLBNT

At 31 March 2010, the tofal future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for land and

buildings were payable as follows:

2010 2009

B —F Not lafer than one year 3,531 2,569
Later than one year and not later than

iE—FENEBELF five years 4,051 —

s Total 7,582 2,569

104 sstwamseEzs —zerzs-z-—264%5
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22. EEHRENRBEE=F—FFE Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
ZA=+—BHILLEERMKRENR  interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
&5 « MERIRRETTREEM  year ended 31 March 2010
e

EEAMBHRERELZA  BESHNASCRMZHEER]  MENNRE -ZFEF HEARZE
REBEE-FT-—FTF-A=Z1T"RALFERARER  TRBRAEAYEREPHEER

Up fo the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not vyet effective for the year ended 31 March 2010 and which have not

been early adopted in these financial statements.

THEMEEEESERZSER  MEALRBBEERRMBRBT EELENTEETHMGE - 29
EmERMZEFER  EARBRETA RS YL EMEL EESNEFRNREMBRAREERTE

The LRTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new sfandards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of inifial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the LRTF's results of operations and financial position.
TS B HREERET RN AN S EH AR M BREAFELHIOAEEITNENKE

The following developments may result in new or amended disclosures in future financial statements:

ATHRBHAH2E
FiE R E e B AR
Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

BB ERE245 (BRI BEA L H E] —2——%—H—H
HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
ERVIERELERFOR SR T A —E—=F—H—H
HKFRS @, Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
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